
Health and Wellbeing Board  
 

Dear Member, 
 

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board to be held as 
follows for the transaction of the business indicated. 
David Wilcock 

Monitoring Officer 

 
DATE: Tuesday, 14 September 2021 

 
TIME:  2.00 pm 

 
VENUE: 100 Embankment - Cathedral Approach, Salford, M3 7NJ 

 
In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 

this meeting.  
 

AGENDA 

 
 GUIDANCE FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ON FACE TO FACE 

COUNCIL MEETINGS 

Please see the attached guidance document on the arrangements for 
the return of face-to-face meetings. This guidance includes 

information about the venue, the control measures in place, COVID19 
lateral flow tests and travel options. 

 

(Pages 1 - 2) 

1   Welcome and Introductions.  

 

 

2   People's Story - 'Day by Day' Project. (Chris Dabbs)  

 
(Pages 3 - 18) 

3   Apologies for Absence.  

 

 

4   Declarations of Interest.  

 

 

5   Minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday 13 July 2021 and 

Matters Arising.  

 

(Pages 19 - 26) 

6   Locality Plan Update / Spotlight on Ageing Well  

 

 

6a Spotlight Presentation - Update on Ageing Well (Sam 

Mansfield/Jessica Ta’ati)  
 

(Pages 27 - 32) 

6b Refresh of Priorities in the Locality Plan (Muna Abdel Aziz)  

 

 

7   JSSNA Programme  

 

 

7a Presenting the Mental Health JSNA (Nicola Prescott / Jess Edwards)  
 

(Pages 33 - 70) 

Public Document Pack



 

7b Progress update on the Cancer JSNA (Nicola Leak)  
 

(Pages 71 - 72) 

7c Planned JSSNAs: Wider determinants/MOSAIC and 
PCNs/Neighbourhood working (Gordon Adams/Jess Edwards)  
 

(Pages 73 - 74) 

8   Influencing role of the Salford Health and Wellbeing Board  

 

 

8a Marmot City Ambition and the Great Eight  
 

 

8b GM ICS arrangements and implications for HWBB (Steve Dixon/ Tom 

Tasker)  
 

 

9   Updates from subgroups  

 

 

9a Report from the Health Protection Board (Gillian McLauchlan)  

 

 

9b Report from the STAT Group (Alison Page/ May Moonan)  

 

 

9c Report from the LPG/JSNA Group (Muna Abdel Aziz/ Alison Page)  
 

 

10   Updates from partners, and emerging issues  

 

 

11   Any Other Business.  

 

 

12   Date and Time of Next Meeting - Tuesday 9 November 2021 at 

2.00pm  

 

 

 

Contact Officer: Tel No:  
Mike McHugh, Senior Democratic Services Officer E-Mail: mike.mchugh@salford.gov.uk 



The return to face to face council meetings from 7 th May 2021 
 
The temporary regulations enabling remote meetings expired on 7 May 2021 and the 

Government now requires meetings of the full council, Cabinet, committees, panels 
and boards (that are open to the public) to be held in public so members of the public 
can attend in person. 

 
A tremendous effort has gone into trying to ensure that any council meetings taking 

place in person will be held in a COVID-19 secure environment.  Your safety is our 
utmost priority, whilst also supporting transparency, accountability and effective 
decision making. 

The venue for face to face meetings 
All the formal council meetings from 5th July will take place at 100 Embankment, 

Cathedral Approach, Salford, M3 7NJ, as this is the most appropriate, suitably sized 

venue available to the city council, where meetings can take place in a COVID-secure 
way.  

COVID-secure face to face meetings 

Listed below are some of the control measures that we have had to put in place at the 

meetings to minimise the risk of the transmission of the virus.  It is very important that 
all persons attending the meetings comply with the following:   
 

1. Please arrive at least 15 minutes before the start of the meeting to allow for 
controlled access to the building and meeting space. 

2. A marshal will be onsite to greet you and will escort you to the meeting. 
3. The meeting will be run in line with Government guidance, and using the principle 

of ‘hands, face and space’. Therefore, you are asked to regularly wash and sanitise 

your hands, wear a face covering at all times unless you hold a medical exemption, 
and please maintain a two metre distance from others at all times whilst in the 

building. 
4. Movement around the meeting spaces will be kept to an absolute minimum with 

pre-defined entrances and exits (the marshal onsite will cover this in more detail 

with you when you arrive). 
5. A vital element of our COVID-secure plans is that everyone attending should 

complete a COVID-19 lateral flow home tests three days before the meeting 
and on the morning of the meeting:  

 

 You can collect or order the home testing kits by: 
o Ordering a box of test kits to be delivered to your home 

o Collecting a box of test kits from a local collection point 
 

 If you test positive before or on the day you were meant to attend the meeting  
under no circumstances should you attend, please email your apologies to 

Democratic Services at decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk 

 

 If your lateral flow test is positive you will then need to book a complementary 

PCR Test and follow national guidance on self-isolating.   
 

6. Despite all the COVID-secure measures we have put in place there remains a 

residual risk and coronavirus can make anyone seriously ill. For some of you the 
risk is higher, particularly if… 

 you are clinically extremely vulnerable or if you are at significant risk 

Page 1

Agenda Annex

https://www.gov.uk/order-coronavirus-rapid-lateral-flow-tests
https://www.salford.gov.uk/people-communities-and-local-information/coronavirus/how-to-get-tested/book-a-free-rapid-coronavirus-test/
mailto:decisionmakingandscrutiny@salford.gov.uk
https://www.gov.uk/get-coronavirus-test
https://www.gov.uk/get-coronavirus-test


 you have one or more health conditions as a number of risk factors may interact 

as well as health conditions. 
 

You may wish to take medical advice about your particular circumstances, if either 

of the above applies to you, before you make a decision about attending a face to 

face meeting.   

Travelling to 100 Embankment 

 By foot: A range of walking routes are available. 

 By train: Manchester Victoria Railway Station is a couple of minutes’ walk 

from 100 Embankment. 

 By car: Q-Park Deansgate North, 2 Chapel Street, Manchester, M3 7WJ, is 

located underneath the Embankment development. Parking can be pre-
booked on the website below. 

 
 Deansgate North Parking | Manchester Car Parks | Q-Park 

 
 

Page 2

https://www.q-park.co.uk/en-gb/cities/manchester/deansgate-north/


Unlimited Potential 

Unlimited Potential is a registered society under the Co-operative and 

Community Benefit Societies Act 2014 (Register number 30669 R at the 

Financial Conduct Authority). 

Registered Office: Innovation Forum, 51 Frederick Road, Salford M6 6FP. 

 

Day By Day 
 

 
 

Priorities of people with 
long-term health conditions 

 
August 2021 

  

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



Summary 

 

In spring 2021, Unlimited Potential spoke with 11 adults in Salford who 
had been on the ‘shielding’ list since March 2020, as a result of the 

COVID-19 situation. We spoke with people of different ages, genders, 
races, sexual orientations, backgrounds, faiths and reasons for ‘shielding’. 

 
We asked people about what they enjoyed doing and what they most 

valued in their lives. When we asked people how they managed their 
experience of having long-term health conditions, many people told us 

that they “take things day by day.” 
 

We wanted to collect people’s stories and learn about the things that 

mattered most to them. People shared lots of individual and personal 
stories, and everyone’s experience was unique. There were six themes 

that we heard most frequently: 
 Being respected – people talked about the importance of being 

believed and understood by other people, as well as fair access. Some 
people spoke of not wanting other people to perceive them as ‘ill’, in 

order to avoid prejudice. 
 Health – people talked about access to green spaces, exercise, being in 

spaces that felt clean and safe, day-to-day management of their health, 
and access to the health care system. 

 Understanding yourself – people spoke about mental health training 
and therapy, as well as expressive creative outlets, such as writing 

poetry or expressing their personality in their style. 
 Purpose and being valued – people talked about the importance of 

their work, learning new things, participating in social support groups or 

their faith community. They spoke as much about helping others as 
they did about being helped. 

 Quality relationships – people talked about their friendships, 
romantic relationships, pets and their family. 

 Enjoyment – people talked about things that were simply fun or 
distracting, such as television and movies, music, puzzles, shopping, 

travelling, art and crafts. 
 

We want to use this learning to help us design, with people with long-term 
health conditions, projects that support them to have the best possible 

quality of life. It is hoped that the learning from the project will be: 
• used to inform wider future developments in Salford, including through 

Public Health at Salford City Council and through the NHS in Salford  
• shared with other parts of Greater Manchester 

 

We want to thank all of the participants for taking part in this project, at 
what was an especially challenging time. We also thank Jenny Gaskell and 

Anna Horton Cremin for doing the project work. 

Page 4

http://www.jennygaskell.com/
https://www.annahortoncremin/


1

Day By Day –

priorities of people with 
long-term health conditions

Chris Dabbs

Unlimited Potential

“Making the world a happier and 
healthier place to live.”

P
age 5



People

2

P
age 6



Approach

3

P
age 7



Your stories matter to us

4

P
age 8



Themes

5

P
age 9



Purpose & being valued

6

P
age 10



Quality relationships

7

P
age 11



Enjoyment

8

P
age 12



Being respected

9

P
age 13



Health

10

P
age 14



Understanding yourself

11

P
age 15



Recommendation

12

Use this intelligence about the 
priorities of people with long-term 
health conditions to:
• inform wider future developments
• design, with people with long-term 

health conditions, approaches that 
support them to have the best 
possible quality of life.

P
age 16



Thank you
Chris Dabbs

0161 743 4502

@UPsalford

13

chris.dabbs@unlimitedpotential.org.uk

www.unlimitedpotential.org.uk

P
age 17



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

SALFORD HEALTH AND WELLEBING BOARD 

 

Tuesday 13 July 2021 

 

14:07 to 15:02 
 

Present 

 

Tom Tasker (TT)   Salford Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) 

Alison Page (AP)   Salford CVS 

Councillor John Walsh (JW) LA Representative 

Alex Leach (AL)   Healthwatch Salford 

Gillian Mclauchlan (GM)  Deputy Director of Public Health 

Deborah Blackburn (DB)  Assistant Director for Public Health Nursing & Wellbeing 

 

Officers 

Gordon Adams (GA)  Strategic Intelligence Manager 

Mike McHugh (MM)   Senior Democratic Services Officer 

 
Apologies 

 

Councillor John Merry (JM) Deputy City Mayor and Lead Member for Adult Services, 

Health and Wellbeing 

Councillor Jim Cammell (JC) Lead Member for Children’s and Young People’s  

     Services 

Councillor Damian Bailey (DBa) Executive Support Member for Social Care and Mental 

     Health 

Councillor Tracy Kelly (TK) Statutory Deputy City Mayor and Lead Member for 

Housing, Property and Regeneration 

Tara Kearney (TK)   Salford Royal Foundation Trust 

Gill Green (GG)   Greater Manchester Mental Health Trust 

Alex Leach (AL)   Healthwatch Salford 

Margaret Rowe (MR)  University of Salford 

Lynne Stafford (LS)   VOCAL H&SC Group 

Steve Dixon (SD)   Salford Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) 

Charlotte Ramsden (CR)  Strategic Director for People 

Chris Dabbs (CD)   Greater Manchester Chamber of Commerce 

Muna Abdel Aziz (MAA)  Director of Public Health 

Cath Gormally (CG)   Salford Royal Foundation Trust 

 

 

1. Welcome and Introductions 

 

TT welcomed members to the first face-to-face meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board 

since the start of the Covid-19 pandemic. 

Page 19

Agenda Item 5



 

2. Questions  

 

TT confirmed that no written questions had been received from members of the public. 

 

3. Apologies for Absence 

 

The above apologies were noted. 

 

4. Declarations of Interest 

 

There were no declarations of interest in any of the items on the agenda. 

 

5. Minutes of the Meeting held on 9 February 2021 

 

The minutes of the meeting held on 9 February 2021 were approved as a correct record. 

 

6. Matters arising 

 

There were no matters arising. 

 

7. Locality Plan Update/ Spotlight on Strong and Resilient Communities. 

 

(a) Spotlight - Update on Starting Well  

 
DB presented a report which provided an update and progress report on Salford’s Thrive 

programme, which included: 

 

- An Executive Summary of the key achievements and challenges. 

 

- an overview of the additional pressures that COVID-19 had placed and continued to 

place on the children and young people’s emotional health 

and wellbeing system.  

 

- other locality strategic work which highlighted the links across the wider children’s 

0-25 transformation, health and social care programmes. 

 

- Key Lines of Enquiry (KLOES) were highlighted and included an infographic 

summary of compliance against these. 

 

- Details of the Greater Manchester children’s and young people’s mental health 

programme. It was noted that some key priorities were co-ordinated / supported or 

driven at GM level and this fed into the RAG rating against some KLOES where 

Salford’s role was to influence or support joint commissioning 

arrangements. 

 

- A comprehensive overview of the progress made against the delivery plan and 

priorities for 2020-21.  

 

Page 20



- An overview of the finance and investment in children’s emotional health and 

wellbeing in Salford, and what services and support that the combined funding 

provided. A forecast of the investment plan for 2021-22, and more details of funding 

and budgets was also provided. 

 

- An overview of Salford’s performance against our key national and GM 

outcomes targets and indicators. Also identified were the elements of children’s 

emotional health system that were most challenging in terms of access and 

performance, and the action being taken to address these. 

 

- A summary of the key priorities for 2021-22 that were identified by the Thrive 

Partnership in December. Partners agreed that last year’s priorities would roll 

forward and continue as ‘normal business’. 

 

The priorities identified for next year reflected the critical issues, concerns and 

challenges that had surfaced during the pandemic and were placing new / 

additional pressures across the children’s and young people’s emotional health 

system.  

 

It was confirmed that there was a statutory requirement on all CCGs to produce and 

publish an annual update to their local transformation plans. In Salford publication on CCG 

and Council websites.  

 

Owing to the Covid-19 pandemic and the associated pressures across the health system, 

NHS England had moved the required date of publication to 30 September 2021.  

 

It was confirmed that this report had been considered and approved at the meeting of the 

Children’s Commissioning Committee held in March 2021. 

 

RESOLVED: (1) THAT progress on the Thrive work programme in 2020-21, as outlined in 

detail in the Salford Thrive Plan - Update 2021, be noted. 

 

  (2) THAT the publication of the Thrive Plan Update on CCG and Council 

websites be noted. 

 

  (3) THAT the proposed priorities and plans for 2021-22 be supported. 

 

(b) Spotlight - Co-production for health and well-being in Salford 
 

Consideration was given to a report prepared by Chris Dabbs relating to Co-production for 
health and wellbeing in Salford. 
 

It was confirmed that within the Salford Locality Plan 2020-2025, partners on the Health 
and Wellbeing Board stated: 

 
•  Co-production with local people is a priority with regard to places, communities and 
 neighbourhoods. 

 
 

Page 21



•  “We will continue to engage with citizens and communities and work towards 
genuine coproduction where possible on our priorities and services. This approach 
is best used to develop innovative local solutions to complex issues such as child 

poverty, suicide prevention, loneliness and social isolation, and climate change.” 
 

•  Co-production is perceived as a form or research and innovation, with a particular 
focus on innovative local solutions to complex issues. 

 

RESOLVED: THAT, in line with the Locality Plan for Salford, the Health and Wellbeing 

Board agrees: 
 
1. To note the approach to co-production for health and well-being in Salford. 

 
2. To confirm that the Board will consider, at a subsequent meeting, specific proposals 

from the co-production process. If supported, co-design of the solutions will then be 
planned with local people. These will then be embedded directly into the Locality 
Implementation Plan. 

 

8. JSSNA Programme 

 

(a)  Update on the Joint Strategic Strengths and Needs Assessment programme 

 

RESOLVED: THAT an update on this item be provided at the next meeting of this Board. 

 
9. Influencing role of the Health and Wellbeing Board 

 

(a) Key Lines of Enquiry for Mental Wellbeing - Update from the Salford Partnerships 
 Inter-board commitment  

 
DB provided a presentation which included details, as follows -  
 

i) National Policy and Drivers 
 

- The Five Year Forward View for Mental Health: improving access to 
psychological therapies (IAPT), Early Intervention in Psychosis, Perinatal 
Mental Health, Suicide Prevention. 

- NHS Long Term Plan: A&E Mental Health Liaison, Community Eating 
Disorders, Living Well, PIMH, Mental Health Support Teams in Schools,  i-

Thrive implementation, BAME communities Young People in prison, Eating 
Disorder Services 

- Community Mental Health Transformation Framework: transforming 

community mental health provision e.g. Community Mental Health Teams, 
Living Well, pathways for older people, people with PD and eating disorders. 

- Future in Mind: improving children and young people’s mental heath and 
wellbeing 

 

 
 

 
 
 

Page 22



(ii) All Age Mental Health Commissioning Strategy 
 
1.  Develop an observable culture shift towards person centered mental health care 

2.  Build resilience in childhood to improve the ability to manage emotional wellbeing 
throughout their lives and through to older age 

3.  Ensure that ‘health’ includes an equal importance on mental and physical health 
4.  Identify as early as possible when people need more support to maintain good 

health and wellbeing 

5.  Achieve the targets set out in the NHS 5 Year Forward View for Mental Health 
(5YFV) and the NHS Long Term Plan. 

6.  Ensure equality of access and promotion of mental health and mental wellbeing 
services 

7.  Review and redesign mental health care pathways across the life course 

8.  Improve how we work together. 
 

Strategy underpinned by all age needs assessment, lived experience and engagement 
with mental health system (statutory services, VCSE, Mental Health Trusts). 
 

(iii) Key Work Programmes & Actions 
 

Suicide Prevention Programme 
- Outreach prevention via Start’s Reach Out programme – this year focusing on 

Students and nursing professions 

- Training for frontline staff e.g. Health Improvement, Advice services, Food Banks 
 

Review of Adult Mental Health Supported Accommodation 
- Reviewing commissioned Adult mental health supported accommodation 
- Improving the flow through the system 

- Addressing out of area / out of alliance supported accommodation placements 
 

Living Well Programme 
- Pilot Multi-Disciplinary Team (MDT) in Broughton 
- Extended reach mental health practitioners in Primary Care Networks 

- Links to Community Mental Health Framework / Redesign 
 

Adult Rehab Pathway 
- Reviewing the rehab pathway, including out of area rehab placements 
 

 
(iv) Salford Thrive 

 
- Thrive in Education: 3-year programme providing support for children and young 

people's emotional health and wellbeing in school and education settings. 

 
- Salford’s Neuro-Developmental Pathway: for children and young people with 

complex neurodevelopmental difficulties, who require a multi-agency assessment 
to gain a better understanding of their needs 

 

- Community Eating Disorders Service: integrated eating disorder pathway for young 
people, with non-interruption of care at age 18 and / or earlier access to adult 

services if needed 
 

Page 23



 
- Parental and Infant mental health: Homestart Baby Bond and Dad’s Matter 
 

- Integrated Community Response Service (ICRS): support for young people who 
may be at increased risk of crisis i.e. missing from home, attending a Pupil Referral 

Unit (PRU) 
 
- Single point of access Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS): 

Supports identification of children with emotional / mental health needs at the 
earliest opportunity 

 
(v) Areas For Wider System Consideration 
 

Family support – breaking the cycle of poor mental health 
- Family and carer support as part of the Living Well pilot 

 
Domestic Abuse 
- Support the development of the DA Commissioning Strategy and 

recommendations 
 

Trauma Informed/Responsive Care 
- Implement the GM work to support Trauma Responsive Approaches 
- Living Well model is based on trauma informed care approaches 

Equity of Access 
- Reviewing how to ‘build back better’, both locally and at GM 

- Recognition of gaps in service and refocusing commissioning to address 
this (e.g. community specific organisations commissioned at GM level to 
support communities of identity (e.g. BAME communities, Deaf Community etc.) 

 
(vi) What can partners do to support our approaches? 

 
•  Promote 5 Ways to Wellbeing within their organisations 
•  Promote Connect 5: Connect 5 is a mental health promotion training programme 

that is designed to increase the confidence and skills of front-line staff about mental 
health and wellbeing, free training is available via the link 

•  Mental Health First Aid, Mind in Salford now offer Mental Health First Aid England 
training for individuals, businesses and organisations in Salford. Mental Health First 
Aid (MHFA) is an evidence-based internationally recognised training, backed by the 

Royal Society for Public Health, which teaches people how to spot the signs and 
symptoms of mental ill health and to provide initial help and support – just like 

physical first aiders do for people with injuries or physical ill health. 
•  Supporting staff with Financial wellbeing and Focusing on Workplace Wellbeing and 

being a Mindful Employer 

•  Promote the Shining a Light on Suicide work 
•  Support staff/clients with Domestic Abuse via the 16 days of action website 

•  Support staff/clients who may be experiencing loneliness 
 
(vii) Next Steps & Actions 

 
•  Request for the Board to consider how their wider system and locality connections 

could help to further work related to these areas of focus. 

Page 24



•  What actions can be taken forward by Board members / organisations to support 
the existing approaches? 

•  How can boards support Early intervention 

•  How can Boards sign up to the Trauma Responsive approaches to ensure system 
buy-in and leadership 

•  How can Boards help us to feed back on the provision we have and identify gaps? 
•  How can Boards help us promote access to information such as The Emotional 

Health and Wellbeing Directory? 

 
RESOLVED: THAT the presentation be noted and the work seeking inter-board 

commitment to the project be endorsed. 
 
(b) Verbal update on Place based governance and the GM ICS arrangements  

 
TT provided an update on the work being undertaken relating to place based governance 

and the development of the Greater Manchester Integrated Care System. 
 
RESOLVED: THAT further updates on this matter be provided at future meetings of this 

Board.  
 
10. Updates from Sub-Groups 

 

(a) Report from the Health Protection Board 
 

Gillian Mclauchlan provided a verbal update on the work currently being undertaken by 
Health Protection Board. 
 

RESOLVED: THAT the report be noted. 
 

(b)  Report from the STAT Group  
 
Alison Page provided a verbal update on the work currently being undertaken by STAT 

Group. 
 

RESOLVED: THAT the report be noted. 
 
11. Updates from partners, and emerging issues 

 

There were no updates in respect of this matter. 

 

12.  Any Other Business 

 

There were no items of any other business. 

 

13. Date and time of next meeting  

 

RESOLVED: THAT the next meeting of this Board be held on Tuesday 14 September 

2021 at 2.00 p.m. 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



Age Well

Samantha Mansfield
Public Health Strategic Manager

Jessica Ta’ati
Integrated Commissioning Manger 

P
age 27

A
genda Item

 6a



Covid Response
• Welfare Calls

• Fulfilling shopping and prescription requests, in partnership 

with Spirit of Salford

• Online programme of activities via Zoom (more than 1,400 
virtual engagements)

• Tech & Tea (189 participants developed digital skills)
• Delivered 500 craft packs to care homes and individuals 
• Delivered 110 cream teas to older people across Salford for 

International Day of older People
• Over 700 hours of volunteer time

P
age 28



Covid Response

During Dementia 
awareness week, Age 
Friendly Salford supported 
Salford Royal Dementia 
unit to stay connected by 
providing tablet 
technology to the unit so 
they can set up a virtual 
visiting project – helping 
people stay connected at a 
time when the hospital is 
closed to visitors.

P
age 29



Covid Recovery

 Running buddy clubs for people living with dementia and their 
carers from

 Opening of Critchley Café Garden which fully from May 2021
 Opening of Humphrey Booth Day Centre
 Home services - shopping and cleaning service
 Hospital After Care service, including an enhanced service to 

support winter pressures with additional funding from Age UK 
which ran until June 2021

P
age 30



Covid Recovery

Themes in the sessions;

 Wellbeing – Keeping Well
 Connecting online
 Eating Well – Nutrition and Hydration
 Keeping Active
 Staying safe online
 Scams Awareness
 Hazards in the home
 Accessing benefits inc. Pension Credit

P
age 31



Age Well Commission
• Current contracts end 31st March 2022 and have been 

extended by 6 months.
• A joint tendering exercise will be initiated between 

Integrated Commissioning and Public Health
• Looking to procure an age well offer with two lots; 1. 

Population Wide 2. Early Intervention and Prevention
• The new service will meet the WHO requirements to 

maintains Salford’s status as and Age Friendly City
• Looking to award a five-year contract
• Offer will be advertised early December 2021 with service 

commencement on1st October 2022

P
age 32



Mental health JSNA for Salford: 
Spotlight on the impacts of 
COVID-19

08 September 2021

Produced by Salford City Council Public Health Intelligence 
team

Jessica.Edwards@salford.gov.uk

P
age 33

A
genda Item

 7a



Aims

• To understand the determinants of health in 
Salford and consider social and contextual factors 
that affect mental health, such as the COVID-19 
pandemic, employment, crime, safety and housing

• The mental health of each individual is influenced 
by their social setting, such as having the ability to 
earn enough money and feeling part of a 
community

• This work is a refresh to the mental health and 
wellbeing needs assessment undertaken to 
support the All-Age Mental Health Commissioning 
Strategy in 2018 

P
age 34



Objectives- the why?

Understanding social factors in Salford can help to quantify levels of risk, 
protection and resilience within a community. It can help to identify 
vulnerable groups and consider what interventions could help to reduce 
vulnerability and develop resilient communities. 

Greater community resilience has the potential to:

 reduce the prevalence of mental health problems
 increase the prevalence of good mental health
 improve recovery and support for individuals who have become 

unwell

The type of questions the needs assessment seeks to address include:

 what local social, economic and other factors encourage good mental health?
 what local social, economic and other factors damage mental health?
 how are these changing over time?
 how do they affect different groups of people or cause inequalities?
 what are the community’s main assets and how strong are social networks?
 what do local people feel about the area and what are they concerned about?
 how do these wider factors affect the need for mental health services?
 how can these wider influences on health be tackled by prevention initiatives?

P
age 35



Scope

130 
pages

P
age 36



Salford’s population

• Younger on average: Compared to England, 
Salford has a younger population structure
overall, with the largest proportion of residents aged 
25-29 and 30-34.

• More ethnically diverse: in 2016, majority of 
Salford’s residents were estimated to belong to the 
‘White British’ ethnic group, with 19.0% belonging 
to groups other than ‘White British’, an increase 
from 13.7% of Salford’s population reported as 
BAME in 2011. There has been a rise in residents 
reporting their ethnicity as ‘All Other White’ and 
‘Black/African/Caribbean/Black British’ since 2011. 
There has also been a small rise in ‘Other’ ethnic 
groups.

• Population size growing the fastest in 
Greater Manchester: Over the next 10 years 
(2020-2030), Salford’s population size is forecast 
to grow by 8.2%, double the growth rate for 
Greater Manchester (4.0%). Salford is expected to 
be the borough with the largest increase in 
population size in Greater Manchester

P
age 37



Risk Factors
For

Mental Health

P
age 38



Deprivation & Poverty

Salford is getting more 
deprived over time. 

In 2015, 44% of 
Salford’s population 
were living in the two 
most deprived Lower 
Super Output Areas 
(LSOA) in England. In 
2019, this increased to 
48.7%, with almost 
one third (30.0%) of 
Salford’s LSOA’s 
classified as in the 
most deprived decile 
nationally.

P
age 39



Employment & Benefits

• Salford’s employment rate fell between Oct 2019 - Sep 2020 to 74.2%, 
below the national average (75.0%).

• In November 2020, 9% of Salford residents said they had lost their job or 
been made redundant. 

• Rate of Universal Credit claimants in January 2021 was higher in Salford 
compared to the GM and national average, with 8.2% of residents aged 
16-64 claiming universal credit, more than double the proportion 
reported pre-pandemic in December 2019 (3.9%).

P
age 40



Childhood Trauma

Salford has the second highest rate of children living in households with all 3 
risk factors in GM (i.e. the toxic trio*: domestic violence, substance misuse 
and/or severe mental health problems):

The Children’s Commissioner report from 2019 estimates that in every class of 30 
school children nationally:

• 6 children are growing up at risk due to family circumstances (1 in 5 children)

Which includes:

• 2 children living in a household where domestic violence or abuse is present

• or 4 children living in a household where *domestic violence, substance misuse 
and/or severe mental health problems are present

Projected % of children (0-17) in households where an adult has all 3 risks:  

 

Manchester 1.48% (# 1790) Tameside 1.13% (# 560) 

Salford 1.26% (# 700) Bury 1.05% (# 450) 

Oldham  1.21% (# 710) Wigan 1.04% (# 710) 

Rochdale 1.21% (# 630) Trafford 1% (# 550) 

Bolton 1.15% (# 770) Stockport 0.97% (# 610) 

 

P
age 41



Impact of COVID-19 
and 

Emerging Inequalities

P
age 42



Social impacts: well-being
During November 2020, Salford residents were significantly more likely than GM residents on average to 

have ‘big concerns’:
• about their physical health (31%) 
• caring for elderly relatives or friends (35%)
• being able to visit loved ones in care settings (39%)
• the cost of heating their home (29%)
• feeling lonely or isolated (35%)
• feeling anxious for the future (42%) 
• have at least some concerns about being able to pay their rent/mortgage (50%)
• among Salford residents that have children, three in five were concerned about their children’s 

mental health (61%).

During January 2021, other social impacts reported by Salford residents include:
• At least 1 in 2 respondents have become concerned about their physical (56%) and mental 

health (58%), their work/employment situation (54%) and their finances (49%). 
• 1 in 4 (25%; 33% on average) have needed to self-isolate at some point. Overall, 22% say they 

have had coronavirus (vs 24% across GM on average), but only 11% have had a test to confirm.
• Around 1 in 5 (18%) say they or someone in their household have lost their job as a result of the 

pandemic, which is in line with the GM average (19%), and nearly 1 in 2 (48%); have had 
GP/hospital appointments cancelled or postponed (48% on average).

• 48% of respondents are no longer sending their children to school or nursery, this is far lower 
than the GM average (63%).

• 1 in 2 (53%) of those in employment are attending the workplace at least some of time, 
somewhat below the GM average (60%).

Source: The Greater Manchester Population Survey, GMCA

P
age 43



Financial position

Salford residents were significantly more likely than GM residents on average 
to have ‘big concerns’ about the cost of heating their home (29%, chart 
below) and to have at least some concerns about being able to pay their 
rent/mortgage (50%).

P
age 44



Children and Young 
people

P
age 45



Physical health

As a result of coronavirus, a higher than average proportion 
of residents in Salford said they were:

 helping others in their area less often (26%)
 sleeping (40%), smoking (25%) and using illegal 

substances (14%) more often
 4 week quit rate in Salford doubled in 2019/20
 cycling more often (25%) 
 one in four said they were gambling less often (26%), 

which is also higher than average. 

P
age 46



Prevalence of Mental Health 
Conditions P

age 47



Depression

Prevalence of depression 
is rising in Salford and 
across GM.

In 2019/20, the prevalence of 
depression in Salford was 11.3%, a 
rise of 0.8% compared to the 
previous year.

Between April 2019 and March 
2020, 22 of 58 GP practices in 
Salford had a prevalence of 12% 
and above for depression, above 
the national average.

P
age 48



Serious Mental illness

Salford CCG's prevalence of 
patients with serious mental 
health is 1.04% for 2019/20.

Between April 2019 and March 
2020, over half (33 of 58) of 
GP practices in Salford had a 
prevalence of patients with 
serious mental health above 
the national average for 
serious mental health 
conditions (health (serious 
mental health conditions: 
schizophrenia, bipolar affective 
disorder and other psychoses 
and other patients on lithium 
therapy).

P
age 49



Physical health checks

P
age 50



Accessing mental health 
servicesP

age 51



Children and YP 
Mental health activity 

CYP mental health activity 
has increased over time

• Between January 2020 and 
April 2021, Salford CCG has 
had the second highest rate 
of CYP mental health activity 
in Greater Manchester 
(583.7 per 1,000 CYP 
population).

• This has mostly been 
through the Manchester 
University NHS Foundation 
provider, which saw its 
highest activity level 
recorded in November 2020.

P
age 52



Children and YP
referrals to MH services

There has been a small fall in CYP referrals to MH services in Salford in 
the last year

• Between January 2020 and January 2021, 5,295 children and young people 
were referred to mental health services, 1.6% of which were emergency 
referrals. Over one third (39%) of referrals were made by GP’s and 13% were 
made by community pediatrics.

• This equates to an overall rate of 180 referrals per 100,000 population, ranking 
Salford highest in GM for the period of Jan 2020-Jan 2021. 

• In the previous 12 months (Dec 2018-Dec 2019), a slightly higher number of 
referrals were made, 1.4% of which were emergency referrals (n= 5,857). 

P
age 53



CAMHS referrals and diagnoses

Rise in U16s A&E presentations/ 
referrals from Q1 2020/21 onwards

After the first national lockdown, referrals 
to CAMHS of under 16-year-olds via A&E 
fell by 42% to their lowest level over the 
last year, well below the Salford average. 
Followed by a rise in the summer and 
autumn months back to pre-pandemic 
average levels. A similar trend was seen 
among those aged 16-17 years old). 

Diagnoses among children aged U18 
fell for most mental health categories 
in Salford compared to 2019/20, 

except for eating disorders, gender 
dysphoria, emerging enduring MH 
difficulties and ‘other’ all showing a small 
rise

P
age 54



Anxiety conditions in CYP

Rise in diagnoses via 
CAMHS of specific 
phobias, social anxiety 
and panic disorders in 
U18 children. 

The largest rise has been in panic 
disorders (+31%) and specific 
phobias (+30%), followed by social 
anxiety (+12%). Interestingly there 
has been a 20% fall in diagnoses of 
generalised anxiety disorders 
among children and young people 
aged 18 and under.

Whilst less GAD diagnoses were 
made in 2020/21 compared to the 
2019/20. The fastest rise in GAD 
diagnoses was seen between Q2 
and Q3 2020/21.  

P
age 55



CYP MH service provision

Salford CCG’s children’s mental health services (CYPMHS) provision overall score is 
18, which is joint 3rd highest in Greater Manchester (with Wigan) and above the GM 
average score (16). 
The overall score for each CCG is calculated based on their performance on the five indicators shown below. This provides an overall indication of how each CCG compares to the rest of 
England .

• CCG spend on children’s mental health as a percentage of CCG budget
• Mental health spend per child (calculated using NHS Five Year Forward View (FYFV) spending figures and ONS mid-2019 CCG population estimates
• Total number of children referred to CAMHS as a proportion of the under-18 population
• Average waiting time for children who receive a second contact
• The percentage of referrals that are closed before treatment.

Mental health services spending and waiting times for children and young people in Greater Manchester, by Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) between April 
2019 and March 2020, Children’s Commissioner report  https://www.childrenscommissioner.gov.uk/report/mental-health-services-2020-21/#maps

P
age 56



Self harm among CYP

Rise in self-harm admissions among 10-24 year olds and at a faster pace 
than seen nationally

In Salford, the rate of self-harm admissions among residents aged 10-24 years old has been above 
the national rate since 2016/17. More recently, the rate dropped below the natnal average during 
the first lockdown and then rose again in Q2 2020/21 however not to as high a level seen pre-
pandemic.

P
age 57



Inpatient stays: 
CYP in CAMHS tier wards

Recent increase in the number of bed days in Q4 19/20, almost doubling 
since the previous quarter (Q3 19/20). Across Greater Manchester STP, there 
has not been a rise in the most recent quarter nor is this the case nationally.

P
age 58



Adults (18+)

P
age 59



IAPT referrals
IAPT referrals across GM fell early in the pandemic but then doubled in the 
3 months between April to July 2020 in Salford.

Referrals fell by more than half (-64%) in Greater Manchester between January and April 2020. A 
similar trend was seen in Salford but to a lesser extent with referrals halving (-51%) between 
January and April 2020. This was followed by the peak in July 2020, with referrals doubling in 
volume compared to April 2020 (+1.4 times). 

The largest month on month rise since June 2019 was between April and May 2020. However, 
referrals peaked pre-pandemic in October 2019. 

P
age 60



IAPT treatment rates

Small spike occurred in 
Sep-Nov 2020 (October 
data missing) otherwise 
below the 5 year average. 
This was not as high as 
levels previously seen in 
Feb 2019.   

In January 2021, Salford 
CCG had the 3rd highest 
rate of first IAPT treatments 
in GM.

P
age 61



Contact with MH services

Small fall in rate of people in contact with services from Q4 2019/20 
onwards (i.e. since pandemic began)

Salford’s rate of people in contact with adult mental health services has been higher than 
the GM and England rate since December 2016/17(Q3). Salford is also 2nd highest in GM.

P
age 62



Mental health service 
users in hospital

Rate has 
increased since 
pandemic began

Rise in Salford’s 
service users in 
hospital between 
2019/20 Q3 and 
2020/21 Q1.

Lower than GM 
average since 
pandemic began.

P
age 63



Ambulance calls 

Volume of ambulance calls for 
mental health problems has 
been increasing since 2015. 

Following the arrival of COVID-
19 into the UK and shortly 
after the first national 
lockdown began, the volume 
of 111 triages for mental 
health problems fell to its 
lowest level since October 
2015, with just 11 calls in the 
month of March 2020. 

Steep rise in calls in the spring 
and summer, with August 
recording 69 calls in the 
month.

P
age 64



Self harm hospital admissions

Self-harm admission falling overall in Salford since April 2018

• Spikes in Feb 2020 and July 2020 which coincided with the lead up to the 
national lockdown (23 March 2020) and GM local lockdown (31 July 2020)

• Salford ranks 3rd highest in GM for its average number of self-harm 
admissions per month since the pandemic began

• More recently (December 2020), Salford ranks 4th highest in GM

P
age 65



Mental health admissions
In the latest quarter (Q2 2019/2020), there were 343.7 mental health 
admissions per 100,000 people in Salford, ranking Salford 3rd highest in GM 
and above the GM and national average

P
age 66



Suicide

Table. Quarterly registered number and percentage of suicides by 
date of occurrence, England, provisional 2020 registrations

There were 4,902 suicides registered in 
England in 2020, equivalent to a 
provisional rate of 9.9 suicide deaths per 
100,000 people; this represents a 
statistically significant reduction in 
the rate from 2019 when there were 10.8 
suicide deaths per 100,000, but caution is 
required in the interpretation of this 
decrease.

Of the 4,902 suicides registered in 
England in 2020, more than half of these 
had a date of death that was also in 2020 
(2,512 deaths or 51.2%). 

The reduction in the number of suicides 
registered in 2020 from the previous year 
may be due to delays to coroner 
inquests, because of the impact of the 
coronavirus pandemic, as opposed to a 
genuine decrease in suicide.

P
age 67



Forecasting demand

IAPT data from the Long-Term Plan based on the new population figures 
suggests the prevalence for anxiety / depression for Salford: 

P
age 68



Questions?

Salford City Council Public Health Intelligence team

Jessica.Edwards@salford.gov.uk

P
age 69



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Cancer JSNA (Joint Strategic Needs Assessment) Summary 

Report author: Nicola Leak Public Health Development Officer, Salford City Council 

9 September 2021 

Progress Update and next steps 

Cancer is a leading cause of death nationally and locally, responsible for 4 in 10 deaths (of people 

aged under 75 years) in Salford. This JSNA describes what we know about cancer in Salford to 

determine areas of need and develop recommendations for future action and service planning.  It 

examines the local risk factors for developing cancer, cancer epidemiology, cancer diagnosis, new 

cancer cases, treatment and deaths, and describes the current services that are in place and service 
user’s experiences. 

A first draft has just been completed and is being shared with a wide audience (including CCG, SRFT 

and CVS) for feedback. Over the next few months, there will be further work for service user 

engagement section, examining their views on services that are working well across Salford, are well 

utilised, and the areas for improvement.  An online/ paper survey and 1:1 interviews may be used to 

collect the insight data. This may change following scoping engagement meetings. .  Some of the 

sections are being finalized; to derive the cancer priorities, challenges and recommendations for 
Salford. 

Cancer JSNA (Joint Strategic Needs Assessment) Summary 

Cancer is a leading cause of death nationally and locally, responsible for 4 in 10 deaths (of people 

aged under 75 years) in Salford. This JSNA* describes what we know about cancer in Salford to 

determine areas of need and develop recommendations for future action and service planning.  It 

examines the local risk factors for developing cancer, cancer diagnosis, new cancer cases, treatment 
and deaths and describes the current services that are in place and service user’s experiences.  

Nearly 4 in 10 cancers are potentially avoidable through changes in lifestyle behaviour, with the 

majority of cancer deaths in Salford from tumors/ types linked to smoking, obesity, poor diet and 

unsafe alcohol consumption.  There is a need in Salford to target lifestyle behaviour change 
programmes to address/ tackle cancer inequalities across Salford. 

Cancer screening programmes play an important role in finding cancer at an early or pre -cancerous 

stage and improving chances of recovery.  Within Salford, there is a need to raise the profile of the 

three national screening programmes (bowel, breast and cervical) to improve screening uptake 

rates.  Currently Salford lags behind its neighbouring local authorities. Lower uptake is also linked to 

GP practices located in the most deprived neighbourhoods.  Public awareness campaigns and 

engagement work within targeted communities is required to see an increase in uptake.  

The Human Papilloma Virus (HPV) vaccine offers protection to the most common HPV types that 

cause cervical, vulval, penile, head and neck cancers and is currently offered to girls and boys in year 

8 (12-13 years). HPV coverage locally is lower that the national target of 90%.  This demonstrates a 

need to adopt the measures outlined for the national cancer screening programmes and promote 

effective awareness raising and minimisation of barriers to screening and immunization, so to 

increase public awareness of the benefits of screening and vaccination and encourage participation 
(particularly in the lower socioeconomic groups). 

Page 71

Agenda Item 7b



The rate of new cancer cases being diagnosed across the city is increasing, with higher rates of new 

cancer cases in local men and in areas of greater need.  The four most common new cancer 

diagnosis in Salford residents are breast, lung, prostate and colorectal cancers.  Cases of l ung cancer 

are higher in Salford than compared with England.  There is a need to target primary prevention 

services e.g., community smoking cessation services in areas of high lung cancer cases, to lower 

rates of smoking. 

Cancer rates are going up year on year in Salford showing that survival from improved treatments 

are resulting in people living longer with/ had cancer.  To sustain this improvement, there is a need 
for cancer services to continue to support people to live healthier lifestyles and quality of life. 

Across Salford more men are likely to die from cancer than women.  Likewise, rates for those aged 

below 75 years are higher in areas of greater need.  Higher numbers of cancer deaths across Salford 

are from respiratory and colon e.g., lung and colorectal, which are largely preventable through 
lifestyle change interventions. 

Salford residents need to be aware of the basic signs and symptoms of possible cancer and visit their 

GP practice if they find anything unpleasant.  The earlier a cancer is diagnosed, and the patient 

receives treatment, the greater the chance of survival. 

Better cancer treatment and service availability has led to improved survival rates, with just over 

70% of Salford patients alive one year following diagnosis. This strengthens the local need to 

promote collaborative working across all levels of care (primary, secondary and tertiary/ social care 

services) to meet individual needs. 

Over recent years the number of Salford patients with terminal cancer receiving palliative care and 

dying in their usual place of residence has increased.  Just over a quarter of deaths (in 2019) 

occurred in the home and fewer in a care home. However, deaths in hospital still account for almost 

half of all local deaths, and 16.8% in a hospice.  Options should be explored to ensure people’s 
preferences are met, particularly where people would prefer not to die in hospital.  

The National Cancer Patient Experience Survey in 2018 found Salford patients rating their experience 

of cancer care as 9.0, a high level of satisfaction.  Additional improvements could be made around 

‘hospital care as an in-patient’, ensuring information and support is tailored to the individual’s 
needs.  

*Please note this JSNA is being produced during COVID-19, therefore a number of services had been suspended 

and accounts for some data irregularities. 

 

  

 

 

Page 72



JSSNA Topics – Deep Dives

Topic Title Themes Status

Cancer JSNA Live Well, Age Well Ongoing

Mental Health Needs Assessment Start Well, Live Well, Age Well Prepared for sign off

Suicide Audit Live Well Ongoing

Sexual Health Needs Assessment Start Well, Live Well In draft

Locality Plan review Start Well, Live Well, Age Well, Place In draft

Public Health Annual Report Start Well, Live Well, Age Well Ongoing

Substance Misuse Needs Assessment Start Well, Live Well, Age Well Pre-planning

0-25 Data Review Start Well Ongoing

Primary Care Network (PCN) neighbourhood priorities Start Well, Live Well, Age Well Ongoing

Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment (PNA) Start Well, Live Well, Age Well Planning

Wider determinants Start Well, Live Well, Age Well, Place Planning

The Joint Strategic Strengths and Needs Assessment (JSSNA) programme comprises
assessments of the current and future strengths, assets and needs of Salford and how they impact
on their communities’ health and wellbeing, improve outcomes and reduce inequalities.

The following table includes current and forthcoming ‘deep dive’ projects incorporated within the
JSSNA programme.

P
age 73

A
genda Item

 7c



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	 Guidance for members of the public on face to face council meetings
	2 People's Story - 'Day by Day' Project. (Chris Dabbs)
	2 Day by day presentation

	5 Minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday 13 July 2021 and Matters Arising.
	6a Spotlight Presentation - Update on Ageing Well (Sam Mansfield/Jessica Ta’ati)
	7a Presenting the Mental Health JSNA (Nicola Prescott / Jess Edwards)
	7b Progress update on the Cancer JSNA (Nicola Leak)
	7c Planned JSSNAs: Wider determinants/MOSAIC and PCNs/Neighbourhood working (Gordon Adams/Jess Edwards)

